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St Helena Government
Independent Audifor’'s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SAINT HELENA GOVERNMENT

| have audited the financial statements of the Saint Helena Government for the year ended 31 March
2013 under the Public Finance Ordinance 2010. The Saint Helena Government financial statements
comprise the Statement of Financial Performance, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Comparison of
Budget and Actual Amounts, and the related notes.

Respective responsibilities of the Financial Secretary and the Chief Auditor

The Financial Secretary is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
international Public Sector Accounting Standards and being satisfied that they present fairly the
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Saint Helena Government. My
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practices Board (APB) Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the government’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Financial Secretary; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| also assess whether the accounts and financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all relevant laws and policies; and whether in material respects the expenditure and income have
been applied to the purposes intended and conform to the authorities which govern them.

| read all the financial and non-financial information published with the financial statements to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If | become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications for my report.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse audit opinion.



St Helena Government
Independent Auditor's Report

Basis for adverse opinion
Non-consolidation of subsidiary bodies

The Saint Helena Government has control, from an accounting perspective, either by direct
shareholding (subsidiaries) or through appointment of board membership of several bodies. These
bodies include the Bank of St Helena, Solomon & Company (St Helena) PLC, Enterprise St Helena,
the St Helena Fisheries Corporation, the St Helena National Trust, the St Helena News Media
Service and the St Helena Line Ltd. The accounts of these bodies have not been consolidated with
those of the Saint Helena Government as required by IPSAS 6, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements.

I cannot accurately quantify the effects of these omissions on the Accounts (due to not having the
necessary information to calculate the adjustments that would arise from aligning accounting
policies, as required to provide a consolidated view). The expected impact is an understatement of
net assets (approximately £12.4m) and financial performance (recalculated to exclude transactions
internal to the group).

The Saint Helena Government has acknowledged in the accounting policies Note 1(a) that non
consolidation is not in compliance with IPSAS 6.

Eligibility of social benefit payments

Saint Helena Government is responsible for the payment of Social Benefits, primarily through Income
Related Benefit and Basic Island Pension. Payments of these two benefits in the year to 31 March
2013 were £1.839 miillion (£1.666m to 31 March 2012). | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence about the accuracy and eligibility of such payments because the Health and Social
Welfare Directorate does not request or hold evidence of eligibility. | was therefore unable to
determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

Inventory holdings

The reported inventory in Note 11 amounting to £2.068m at 31 March 2013 (£1.954m as restated
31 March 2012) excluded allocated stores with an estimated value of £1.127m at 31 March 2013
which had been held by the Infrastructure and Utilities Division and charged to expenditure on
acquisition. IPSAS 12 requires that inventory is recognized as an asset and expensed when the
stores are utilized and related revenue is realized. Accordingly reported net assets are understated
to the extent of this allocated inventory.

The audit evidence available to me was limited because | did not observe the counting of the physical
stock as at 31 March 2013. Owing to the nature of the Governments records, and inadequate stock
taking arrangements, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the stock
quantities by using other audit procedures.
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Basis for qualified regularity opinion

The Bulk Fuel Installation (BFI) is an activity of Government undertaken without statutory cover
through an Ordinance or Special Fund. Accordingly these transactions and balances are deemed
to form part of the Consolidated Fund but expenditures and revenues in relation to the BFI are without
estimate provision or legal authority under an Appropriation Ordinance.

My regularity opinion is further qualified as the BFI reserve balance amounting to £3.796m at 31
March 2013 (£3.817m as restated 31 March 2012) is unlawfully reported within Special Funds in the
Statement of Financial Position and Note 21 rather than within Consolidated Fund.

Adverse opinion on the financial statements

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the basis of adverse opinion
paragraphs, the financial statements do not present fairly the financial position of Saint Helena
Government and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013, and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Qualified opinion on regularity

Except for the incurrence of expenditure without authority in respect of the Bulk Fuel Installation and
the unlawful classification of its reserve, as described in the basis for qualified regularity opinion
paragraphs, in my opinion:

e in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended and conform to the authorities which govern them; and

¢ the accounts and financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all relevant
laws and policies.

Emphasis of matter — divestment of utility services

In forming my opinion on the financial statements, which is modified, | have considered the adequacy
of the disclosures made in Note 25 to the financial statements concerning the divestment of utility
services to a controlled company Connect St Helena with effect from 1 April 2013. The transfer of
these assets, revenues and expenditures represents a discontinued operation from the perspective
of the separate financial statements of the Government of St Helena.

Phil Sharman CPFA CA
Chief Auditor for St Helena

29 October 2015

St Helena Audit Service, Jamestown, St Helena






St Helena Government
Financial Secretary’'s Report

FINANCIAL SECRETARY’S REPORT
INTRODUCTION

I have pleasure in presenting the Financial Statements of the Government of St Helena for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013. The Financial Statements are reported under the authority of
the Constitution of St Helena 2009, section 109. This is the second reporting year since the accruals
basis of accounting was adopted by SHG in 2011/12. The Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) with the exception of one
area where we have not complied with regard to consolidating SHG’s accounts with subsidiaries and
have made this clear in the accounting policies.

It is acknowledged that we are behind on our financial reporting, and this is due to the substantial
amount of technical work required to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with IPSAS. A
recovery plan has been prepared and agreed with the Chief Auditor to get the reporting back on
track with the 2015/16 Financial Statements being completed within the expected timeframe.
Additional resources have been secured to ensure the delivery of the plan.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Saint Helena’s Sustainable Development Plan (SDP) is the highest level planning document. It sets
out the strategic vision for the island over the next three years which is to:

“STRENGTHENED COMMUNITY AND FAMILY LIFE THROUGH VIBRANT ECONOMIC
GROWTH, WITH OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL TO PARTICIPATE, WITHIN A FRAMEWORK OF
EFFECTIVE GOVERNMENT AND LAW.”

Our priorities are focussed on the challenge of making St Helena ready to maximise the benefits

arising from air access and to deliver key services for the community, such as Health, Education and
Social Services. The diagram below shows the national framework:

THE VISION

To stimulate economic growth; to protect the environment; and to improve the quality of life
of present and future generations in a strong and safe community.

NATIONAL GOAL 1 | NATIONAL GOAL 2 [ NATIONAL GOAL 3 |
A VIBRANT ECONOMY | |
PROVIDING | STRONG COMMUNITY | EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT
OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL AND FAMILY LIFE | OF THE ENVIRONMENT

TO PARTICIPATE |

SUPPORTING FRAMEWORK

Efficient, Effective and Open Government

This being the second year of the ‘Outputs’ basis of presentation we now have a comparative
presentation showing last year's budget figures against the current year's. However due to some
functions previously undertaken by one directorate being transferred to another, there is some loss
of comparability between the current and previous years.
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PERFORMANCE
Budget development

The 2012/13 budget was approved in March 2012 by Legislative Council and was developed through
the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) process. Following confirmation in November
2011 of the award of the airport contract, strategic priorities have been adjusted to put economic
development to the forefront and front line services such as Education, Social Services and Health.
Councillors were faced with difficult decision of which services should be included and which shouid
be dropped in order to support strategic priorities whilst remaining within the funding limits. The
budget process was again led by Council and they took full responsibility for the process.

The Development Assistance Planning Mission (DAPM) visited in February 2012 and following a
series of discussions with the Governor, Elected Members, Directors, other SHG officials, the private
sector and civil society organisations an aid settlement for 2012/13 was agreed with an indicative
settlement for the two subsequent years. This was documented in the Aide Memoire 2012.

Expenditure estimates

The budget approved clearly separated operating expenditure, capital investment and amounts were
appropriated on this basis. The budgets for individual directorates were once again shown on an
‘Outputs’ rather than an ‘Inputs’ basis following the change made in the previous financial year. This
gave a greater understanding of the costs and outputs of each service within SHG rather the inputs
into the process. These Estimates concentrate on what directorates are expected to produce and
how much that production will cost. Directors are therefore held more accountable for what they do
with the public funds with which they are entrusted.

Composition of actual expenditure
(This chart shows how much was spent on each service area for every

£ that was spent)
Bulk Fuel
Installation

" Trading Activities
0.2p

® Health & Social
Welfare
14.5p

3.4p

® Shipping Subsidy
12.3p

= Benefit Payments

5.1p
General Public

Sfervllce # Education &
.1p Employment
7.9p

Police
3.4p

Agriculture &
Natural Resources
2.9p

Public Sector
Pensions
5.9p

®  Economic
B Infrastructure &

Developme ruc
4.8p ® Environmental Utilities
Management 22.9p
0.6p

Source: Statement of Financial Performance
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As with any budget, it must be managed and reviewed closely throughout the year and be proactive
and reactive to changes in circumstances, this year was no different and through close monitoring a
number of changes were made. This is summarised in note 5 being a comparison of budget and
actual amounts for 2012/13.

We have assessed the actual expenditure against budgeted expenditure during the financial year
and explained the significant variances. Our ability to execute appropriated expenditure is an
important factor in delivering these key services that was planned for the year. The overall variance
of actual expenditure compared to original budget for this financial year is within tolerable level.

A number of under spends have occurred across a number of areas however the most significant
under spend is with the subsidy payments to St Helena Line for the running of the RMS St Helena.
As the St Helena Airport project continues to develop it is anticipated that we will continue to see
positive results, through increased usage, on the subsidy required to operate the RMS St Helena.

Revenue estimates

Revenues continued to grow during the financial year both on customs duty and income tax.
Revenue budgets were developed for income tax and customs duty based on a series of detailed
discussions and an agreed macro-economic model adjusted for changes in policies planned for
adoption during the financial year. The model was developed by the Government Economist for
economic forecasting, and is expected to provide a consistent basis on which to estimate future tax
revenues.

Income tax and Customs Growth
(This chart shows the growth in income tax and customs duties over the
last five financial years)
£4,000
£3,500 | — - —

£3,000

(000s)

£2,500 i ————

(!
5
V|
'

Revenue collected

£2,000
£1,500
£1,000
£500 | —
£_ .
| 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 |
w——IncomeTax |  £2,124 £2,269 £2,772 | £2,08 |  £2,563
CustomsDuty | £2,750 |  £2,707 £2,880 |  £3359 |  £3,625

Source: Audited Financial Statements for 2009/10, 2010/11 and Note 3 to the 2012/13 Financial Statements

The chart above shows the growth in local income tax and customs revenues over the past five
years. The movement in Income tax during the years 2010/11 to 2012/13 takes account of changes
in tax policies during that period.

Work continues on developing changes to import duties. During this financial year we continued
with the policy to equalise customs duty rates on petrol and diesel with the duty on petrol lowered



St Helena Government
Financial Secretary’s Report

from 43p per litre to 39p and the duty on diesel increased from 10p per litre to 17p. This policy to
equalise the rates of duty on petrol and diesel will continue over the next two years.

The rates on specific duties were also increased in line with inflation as in previous years and imports
by Government departments are now subject to import duty. This policy change is intended to
provide a ‘level playing field’ for local suppliers to government who have had to pay customs duties
on their imported supplies.

Composition of revenue local and non-local

revenue
(This chart shows the proportion of revenue recevied from each funding
source during the year)
Other Development

Aid \
9.2%
-
DFID Development FmgS, Fees &
Aid \ Licenses
» 2.8%

= Taxation
15.2%

15.9%

& Income Received

.. 10.3%

Treasury Receipts
1.5%

DFID Shippingj

Subsidy
12.3%

® Other local revenue
0.6%

= DFID Grant in Aid
32.2%

Source: Note 3 to the 2012/13 Financial Statements

The Chart above shows revenue received by SHG during the year from each major funding source
both local and non-local. It also excludes the recognition of revenue from non-exchange transaction
for the St Helena Airport from DfID.

We have also assessed the actual revenue collected against budgeted revenue during the financial
year. This allows us to assess the degree to which we have achieved the revenue projected during
the budget setting process. Our ability to deliver key services is dependent on our ability to
appropriately forecast revenues. Actual revenue collected compared to the original budget for this
financial year is 98.8% which is within tolerable level.

Capital Expenditure
During the financial year SHG received financial support from UNDP, DfID and EDF for specific

project support for particularly capital projects. In addition to this as part of a previous DAPM visit
SHG made a commitment to draw down on the Reserves to further support the capital programme.
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During the financial year £0.8M was drawn down from the Consolidated Fund and £0.8M from the
Improvements & New Construction Revolving Fund to support the capital projects.

The chart below shows how capital expenditure (excluding Airport Infrastructure expenditure) was
applied across SHG.

Capital Expenditure

(This chart shows the sectors where capital expenditure was applied during
2012/13)

Other Services (incl IT
services)
3.7%

Environmental

Management Shipping
3.5% : 18.0%
Health & Social
Services i Agriculture & Natural
0.8% Resources
0.8%

Infrastructure &
Utilities
73.0%

Source: Notes 6 and 13 to the 2012/13 Financial Statements

In closing | would like to give special thanks to the hard work of the finance team over the six months
in pulling together these financial statements.

D Do

Colin Owen
Financial Secretary
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
July 2013 (Reviewed and updated October 2015)

Introduction

The Chief Secretary, in his/her capacity as Head of the Public Service for St Helena Government
(SHG) requires Directors/Accounting Officers to give him/her assurance about the stewardship of
their Directorates.

The Governance Statement records the stewardship of SHG to supplement the accounts. It should
give a sense of how successfully it has coped with the challenges it faced and achievements gained
for the financial year 2012/13. This statement aims to draw together position statements and
evidence on governance, risk management and control and to provide a more coherent and
consistent reporting mechanism on the governance framework of SHG.

Governance comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values by which SHG is
directed and controlled and through which it is accountable for. Good governance is about ensuring
an organisation is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely open and
accountable manner. There is a strong correlation between effective governance and effective
service delivery.

This is the first year that SHG has produced an Annual Governance Statement, which will be used
as a baseline for future years. The Statement assists SHG in achieving the Sustainable
Development Plan 2012/13-2014/15, Key Results Area; Governance — This Island’s government is
accessible and democratic and delivers services in an open, fair and legitimate manner.

The final draft of the Statement was considered at the Audit Committee on 24 July 2013, following
endorsement by the Strategic Management Team of SHG.

The Saint Helena Audit Service as SHG's external auditors will review the statement alongside of
the Statement of Accounts, report on inconsistencies between information reported in the Statement
and provide recommendations for improvement.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012/13
1. Scope of Responsibility

St Helena Government (SHG) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law, approved policies, procedures and standards and that public money is
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. SHG also
has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions
are carried out.

In discharging this overall responsibility, SHG is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.

In the year to 31 March 2013 SHG had spent £45,137,000 ' (recurrent and capital expenditure) and
had a workforce of 807 staff. During 2012/13 SHG also commenced a restructuring programme that

' Financial Statements 2012-2013.

10
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will enable services to be delivered through 4 Operational Directorates supported by Corporate
Services:

« Education and Employment — responsible for educating all compulsory school age children
on St Helena and for providing a life-long learning programme for adults. This is done through
the following services:

- Provision of primary and secondary sector education for pupils, including tailor made
programmes for special needs pupils;

- Provision of a life-long learning through appropriately structured programmes developed
by the Adult and Vocational Education Service, including an examination centre for
international professional and technical examinations; and

- Provision of the Island’s Public Library.

¢ Health and Social Welfare — responsible for delivering primary and secondary care level of
health and social welfare to the population of St Helena. This is done through the following
services:
- Community care services which provides primary health care to the public;
- Medical and nursing services which provides the secondary health care to the public;
- Elderly and home care services;
- Pharmacy and Laboratory services which also includes commercial laboratory testing;
- Dental services to the public;
- Environmental health services including pest control and sanitary services; and
- Social care, including financial benefits and social housing assessments.

o Environment and Natural Resources — This is a newly structured Directorate that started
its restructure late 2012 and will continue through 2013. The ENRD plans to bring together
the roles concerned with the management, conservation and regulation of the natural and
man-made environment and will include Lands, Buildings, Transport, Infrastructure,
Agriculture and Environment. The services provided (and not inclusive to) are:

- Agriculture production support, including biosecurity, pest management and veterinary
services;

- Forestry production support including firewood harvesting, tree surgery and grounds
maintenance;

- Conservation and sustainable management of the Island’s terrestrial, freshwater and
marine resources;

- Environmental risk management and education;

- Endemic plant species and habitat management and restoration;

- Land disposal and registration;

- GIS services;

- Building Regulations control;

- Land planning and development applications; and

- Provision and maintenance of St Helena's road network.

o Police — responsible for the protection/preservation of life and property and promote a safe
and secure environment. This is done through:
- Reducing crime, including provision of a prison and probation service
- Improving public safety, through delivering community beat, rehabilitation programmes,
traffic management and vehicle testing.

"
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- Emergency services and disaster management including fire and sea rescue response;
and
- Immigration and emigration, including processing visas, boarding ships etc.

e Corporate Services — to support the Chief Secretary in ensuring the smooth running of the
Public Service and delivery of SHG provided services. This is done through:
- Information and Information Technology management;
- Financial Management; including St Helena Revenue Management and Postal
Services;
- Human Resource Management;
- Government/Council Support;
- Public Relations and Communications;
- Strategic Planning and Performance Management, including Risk Management;
- Policy Coordination and Management;
- Quality Standards provision and management; and
- Assurance services.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which
SHG is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads
the community. It enables SHG to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system
of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of SHG’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should be realised, and to manage efficiently, effectively and economically.

A Corporate Governance, Roles and Responsibilities paper was drafted during 2012/13, but not
finalised. This paper “seeks to clarify the Corporate Governance arrangements and the roles and
responsibilities of the various constituent parts of St Helena Government”. It sets out SHG's
intentions on its structure, how it shouid formulate policy, make decisions, communicate with its
stakeholders and monitor the impact of decisions made. The paper “Corporate Governance —
Guidance to Public Officers” was finalised and issued on 1 April 2014.

3. The Governance Framework

Strategic Management Team

In November 2012, the Team for overarching management of the Public Service was restructured,
and as a result, a Strategic Management Team (SMT) was formulated. The role of SMT is to:
Guide SHG strategy and policy priorities;

Communicate the vision, direction and priorities of SHG to staff and stakeholders;

Ensure the effective allocation and management of SHG staff and financial resources;
Monitor and improve SHG'’s performance, with emphasis on risk management;

Maintain a system of prudent and effective controls to ensure accountability, consistency,
propriety and regularity; and

12



St Helena Government
Annual Governance Statement

e Lead the process of change and continuous improvement to maximise efficiency and
effectiveness and to enhance capacity to deliver services with value for money.

SMT meets every two weeks and consists of the Chief Secretary as Chair, the Deputy Chief
Secretary, Financial Secretary, the Directors of Strategic Policy Planning, Health and Social Welfare,
Education and Employment and Environment and Natural Resources and the Chief Executive for
Economic Development.

Supporting Senior Management Team — Corporate Management Team

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) is a consultation group for SMT. It is used for:
e Sharing information and expertise;
e Considering actions required for cross-cutting issues;
e Joint problem solving; and
e Building and encouraging corporate behaviour.

CMT meets on a six week basis and consists of SMT (above) and other senior managers such as
the Directors of Human Resources, Agriculture and Natural Resources, Environmental
Management, Police, Corporate Procurement and Internal Audit.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Governor in fulfiling his constitutional
responsibility for ensuring strength and best practice within the governance framework, in particular:
e The effectiveness of the SHG's Internal Control system;
o The effectiveness of SHG's approach to Risk Management; and
e Ethical principles — concerning compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and anti-
fraud and corruption.

The Audit Committee also provide oversight of the Internal Audit Office. The Audit Committee meets
every two months to consider the reports presented by internal Audit and consist of the Head of
Governor’s Office as Chair, members with legal and financial background and 3 non-government
members.

Council Committees

Whilst the Council Committees are constituted in their own right under the Constitution, they also
have responsibility for governance arrangements and strategic management of Directorates under
the Public Service. This includes:
e lIdentifying, examining and endorsing policy formulation;
o Ensuring the agreed strategic priorities are adequately catered for within Directorate Strategic
Plans and appropriate resources are allocated;
« Evaluating Directorates progress against agreed performance indicators, their performance
in terms of value for money and budget management;
e Examining specific outputs and decisions from the Directorates, Specialists and Assurance
Bodies such as the Internal and External Auditors; and
e Examining the implementation and impact of legislation and major policy initiatives to
determine their effectiveness and make recommendations for improvement.

During the period under review there were eight Council Committees which comprised of Elected
Members:

o Access and Transport — Responsible for air and sea access and inland public transport.
e Tourism and Leisure — Responsible for tourism, culture and heritage and leisure sports
and recreation.
13
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e Economy and Finance — Responsible for public finance and economic policy, including
revenue, expenditure, economic development and planning, their structures and regulation
and monopolies and investments policy.

» Education and Employment — Responsible for education (schools, skills, lifelong learning)
and employment law and policies

o Health and Social Welfare — Responsible for public and environmental health, social
services, pensions, health and safety.

e Home, Civil Society and International — Responsible for the legal system, media,
telecommunications and postal, disaster preparedness, community, non-government
organisations, civil society and advice on overseas relations.

Infrastructure and Utilities — Responsible for roads, energy and water.

e Natural Resources, Development and Environment — Responsible for agriculture,
forestry, fisheries, lands (including Crown Estate, land use, development, housing) and the
environment.

Legislative Programme

The Attorney General monitors current and anticipated future demands from Directorates for new
legislation, and reports periodically (as necessary) to the Governor in Council. If demands exceed
capacity, the Governor in Council determines the prioritisation of work. During 2012 the process of
creating and updating laws changed from paper based work to electronic. This enabled SHG to
provide up-to-date and easily accessible laws to the public, via the SHG website.

As at December 2012, 13 Ordinances and 39 Legal Notices were issued. This consisted of 24 new
pieces of legislation 27 revisions. This included key laws such as the new Media Standards, the
revised Immigration Ordinance, Income Tax Regulations and amendments to the St Helena
Development Agency Ordinance and Employment Rights Ordinance.

Policy Management

In 2012/13 a Handbook 'Policy Making in St Helena’ was published and workshops were held to
launch the Policy Making Process. Once an issue has been identified, the Corporate Policy and
Planning should be informed and support will be given through the appraisal and public consultation
processes. After Economic, Financial, Social and Environmental Impact Assessors sign off the
policy, the policy would then be sent to the Executive Council (ExCo) or other appropriate authority
for approval. Once a policy has been approved it is implemented and a maintenance plan (to ensure
its relevance) is put in place. New policies have followed the policy management framework and
will continue to in 2013/14.

For 2012/13 a total of 17 policies (included revised policies) were approved by ExCo.
Risk Management

In 2012/13 Directorates continue to produce a Directorate Risk Register during the Strategic
Planning cycle. The risks were based on the Strategic Objectives that Directorates planned to
achieve for the year. A Corporate Risk Register was also derived from the Directorates’ high level
risks. Whilst Directorates complete their risk mitigation plans, no monitoring mechanism was
established during this year to evaluate and revise mitigation plans as circumstances change. An
Annual Risk Management Report will be produced at the end of the financial year that will report on
implementation.

Risks now form part of the Monthly Corporate Performance Report. The new report will be used in

2013/14 and will be discussed at Strategic Management Team meetings on a monthly basis.
Progress will be presented to the Audit Committee.

14
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Performance Management

The 2012/13 Directorate Strategic plans were linked directly to the Sustainable Development Plan
2012/13-2014/15. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) derived from the Directorate Strategic Plans
were reported on monthly, with the remaining Directorate Strategic Plan indicators been reported on
quarterly. The Monthly Corporate Performance Report was discussed at Corporate Management
Team meetings. A full Corporate Performance Report for 2012/13 will also be compiled and
published. A new monitoring system was developed and piloted during this year and will be used in
2013/14. The new systems incorporates KPIs (corporate indicators identified by the Strategic
Management Team) Key Corporate Risks and performance indicators identified during the annual
DAPM.

67% of indicators (including KPIs) gained a green rating, 14% an amber rating and 18% a red rating.
It was difficult during the first half of the year to analyse some information given and/or assess
progress against some targets as the narrative given did not match the target indicator. As a resuit
CPP met with the Responsible Officers to ensure that they were clear about what they should be
reporting on. There were a few areas where progress was slow, these were monitored closely and
discussions were held with responsible persons to gain a better understanding of the issues that
hampered progress. There was also difficulty in obtaining monthly and or quarterly updates and
reports were finalised after the agreed deadlines as a result. The performance report that was used
in 2012/13 had 57 indicators (including KPls) this has now been reduced to 18 KPIs in the new
format and therefore we anticipate that response rates should be better and the system should be
more manageable.

Budget Management

At the start of the year, Directors (Accounting Officers) who have the overall responsibility for their
Directorate budgets were required to produce phased budgets against their approved budget
allocations. That is forecasting how they plan to spend the money throughout the year and indicate
when revenue would be received. This was provided to Finance who has the overall responsibility
of monitoring SHG’s expenditure and revenue. Regular monitoring of expenditure is essential; not
just to verify expenditure against target but also to identify changing patterns or circumstances that
need corrective action. Each month Finance produced a set of Management Accounts that
compared budget with actual expenditure/revenue and to explain any material variances. There are
no set parameters for obtaining material variances; it depends on the correlation of the total value of
the budget to the value of the variance. The monthly Management Accounts is presented on a
monthly basis to the Economy and Finance Committee, to the Department for International
Development (DfID) and published on the SHG website.

During the preparation of December's Management Accounts, Directorates were also required to
review their forecast figures for periods January to March 2013.This provided SHG with an early
indication of what is the potential year-end financial position. It also allowed SHG to reallocate
monies from functions that planned to under-spend their budget to functions that would overspend.
This was included in the Supplementary Appropriation Bill that was approved/enacted on 12 March
2013.

To ensure accurate information was being reported, Directorates submissions were reviewed and
challenged by Finance where the level of detail for variances explanation warranted a more detailed
explanation. More accurate forecasting of budgets and a better understanding of what has been
submitted as phased budgets under accruals accounting is needed by all directorates. Directorates
are encouraged to come forward to Finance for assistance, when there is uncertainty with the
process.
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Main Accounting System Process

The Main Accounting System is set up to record SHG's expenditure and revenue as well as capturing
all assets and liabilities of SHG. The data processed from this system is reflected in the SHG
Management Accounts, which provides the Income and Expenditure and Balance Sheet for SHG for
the month end. For 2012/13 SHG used the accounting software package Access Dimensions to
manage the System.

The System incorporates various financial modules i.e. Sales (Debtors), Purchases (Creditors) and
the Nominal (i.e. Fixed Assets, Suspense Accounts and Control Accounts, Accruals and
Prepayments). Each month the Finance Directorate performed various checks and reconciliations
on these modules to ensure records and figures agreed; and used a month-end checklist as
confirmation. For example; the ‘Age Creditors Report’ (list of suppliers’ statement balances) was
checked against the Bank Automated Clearing System (BAC)'s Report to confirm payments were
made to the correct persons; and cash book balances within the System is checked against the
statements provided by Bank of St Helena and Crown Agents.

With exception of the Fixed Asset Register, the month-end reconciliations and checks were carried
out during 2012/13. Improvement is needed to ensure the checklists are complete, which provides
audit trails of processes. The Fixed Assets Register within Asset Manager System was not kept up
to date during 2012/13 and to provide the monthly Management Accounts, Fixed Asset purchases
recorded in the Access Dimensions package was used.

4. Review of Effectiveness

SHG is responsible for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance
framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the
work of Senior Officers and Directors, who are responsible for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report and also comments made
by the external auditors.

Management Review
An assurance survey on the effectiveness of bodies with comprehensive responsibility of governance

arrangements for the Public Service was undertaken through completion of Self Assessments. A
summary on the management of Teams/Committees is given below.

Annual Governance Statement — Team/Committee Self Assessment Summary
Section Arrangement
in place

Role and Remit

The area of work that the Team/Committee is responsible for. This includes
having a Terms of Reference that covers all responsibilities, sufficient
membership, authority and resources to carry out this work effectively.
Membership, Induction and Training

To ensure the Team/Committee has clear understanding of their role, including 54%
appropriate skills and experience.

Meetings and Administration

To ensure the Team/Committee meets regularly and their agenda throughout the

60%

[+)
year covers all elements of the area of their responsibility. Results of the minutes 96%
are shared appropriately.
Strategic Direction
To ensure appropriate actions are undertaken that leads to the achievement of 63%

St Helena’s goals. This is done through monitoring progress of performance
indicators, budgets and against actual expenditure and risk management.
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Assurance was also sought from the Directors regarding the effectiveness of the key controls within
their areas of operation. The assurances are obtained via an ‘Annual Governance Statement — Self
Assessment’ which is required to be completed in full and with due diligence by each Director.
Internal Audit then undertakes a sample check of the completed self assessments and supporting
evidence to determine the level of assurance that can be placed on the returns.

A summary of the key controls in operation is given below:

Annual Governance Statement — Self Assessment Summarised for SHG
Section Controls in
Place

The Control Environment

The Control Environment provides the direction, discipline and structure for an

organisation, and in this case SHG. It establishes the objectives, ensures the

statutory, mandatory and discretionary requirements are met and influences the
flow of communication and information within SHG.

a) Integrity and Ethical Values — An essential component of the control
environment, as these values set the tone for the conduct of the business

b) Commitment to Competency — The competence levels for all jobs within SHG
is assessed and staff in post have the requisite knowledge and skills to 80%
enable them to do a good job.

c) Organisational Structure — SHG’s organisational structure provides the
framework within which its activities for achieving SHG objectives and 89%
mandatory obligations are planned, executed, controlled and monitored.

d) Devolved Responsibility — This component includes the assignment of
authority and responsibility for operating activities as well as establishing 100%
reporting relationships and authorisation protocois.

e) Information and Communication — Relevant information must be identified,
captured and communicated in a form and timeframe that enables people to
carry out their responsibilities. Effective communication must also occurin a
broader sense, flowing down, across and up the organisation.

Identification of Key Risks to the achievement of Objectives

Risks affect an organisation’s ability to maintain financial strength, positive public

image and the overall quality of its setvices and people. Risk assessment

represents the identification and analysis of relevant risks to achieving objectives.

Management must focus carefully on risks at all levels of SHG and take necessary

actions to manage them. Risks should be identified and assessed at both

Strategic and Operational level.

a) Objectives (Strategic and Directorate) — By setting objectives at both
Strategic and Directorate levels, SHG can identify critical success factors.
SHG's objectives are defined within the Sustainable Development Plan
(SDP), which sets out the key activities to ensure that SHG's goals are
attained. These strategic objectives must be broken down into Directorate 86%
Objectives, consistent with the overall strategy and linked to activities
throughout SHG. Directorate objectives need to be clear and readily
understood by the people taking actions and responsibility for their
achievement and they must be measurable.

b) Managing Change — As SHG's activities evolve, the internal control system
requires change because an effective system under one set of conditions will
not necessarily be effective under another. Mechanisms to manage change
shouid be forward looking so SHG can anticipate and plan for significant
changes. Fundamental to risk assessment is a process to identify changed
conditions and take actions as necessary.

85%

76%

55%
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Annual Governance Statement — Self Assessment Summarised for SHG
Section Controls in
Place

Identifying and Evaluating Key Controls to manage Key Risks

Control activities are the policies and procedures used to ensure objectives are

met. Control activities vary depending upon the nature of the risk mitigated and

are carried out to ensure that the risks are minimised to an acceptable level.

a) Policies and Procedures — Control activities usually involve two elements; a
policy establishing what should be done and procedures to affect the policy.
Regardless of whether a policy is written, it must be implemented
conscientiously and consistently. A procedure should not be used if
performed mechanically without a continuing focus on conditions to which the
policy is directed.

b) Control Activities in place — Control activities are a significant part of the
process by which SHG strives to achieve its objectives. Control activities
serve as mechanisms for managing and mitigating risks, thereby enabling 66%
the achievement of objectives. Control is built directly into processes and
always relates back to the risk it was designed to mitigate.

Obtaining Assurance on effectiveness of Key Controls

All systems need to be monitored — a process that assesses the quality of the

system's performance over time. This is accomplished through on-going

monitoring activities, separate evaluations (audits) or a combination of the two.

Any control deficiencies should be reported to management, with serious matters

reported to the Strategic Management Team.

On-going monitoring

79%

85%

Internal Audit

The Annual Internal Audit plan of work is agreed by the Audit Committee and shared with the
Corporate Management Team. The plan was created follow review of the previous year's work, the
annual risk assessment and issues raised by Senior Officials. On a bi-monthly basis, Internal Audit
provides a report to the Corporate Management Team on the progress of agreed recommendations.

An Annual Assurance Statement is drawn up at the yearend based on the work undertaken. The
table below shows the internal audit reviews for 2012/13.

Audit Area ‘Assurance Level |
Provided
Cross Cutting — Information Management and Decision Making Limited
Cross Cutting — Risk Management Assessment Limited
Energy Division and Transport Division — Fuel Full
Finance — Core Financial Systems Limited
(Creditors, Debtors, Payroll, Cash & Petty Cash, Fixed Assets) |
Human Resources — Human Resource Activities Full
Human Resources — Official Secrets Declaration Limited
_Information Technology — IT Security Controls Limited
Corporate Support — Insurance Policy Full
Corporate Support — Port Management Full
Corporate Support — Compliance with Harbour Ordinance Limited
Health and Social Welfare Directorate — Social Benefits Payments Full
Health and Social Welfare Directorate — Health Strategy Equipment Limited
Check and Verification
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Audit Area

Assurance Level
Provided

All Directorates - Financial and Operational Control Testing

Full

5. Significant Governance Issues

In terms of internal controls there have been areas where weaknesses have been identified through
the Directorates, Teams/Committees Self Assessments, summary work and Internal Audit. See

train) and staff movement
as a result of restructuring,
succession planning is
difficult to implement.
Cross-training into different
functions often takes place
to ensure continuation of
operations.

A Workforce Strategy was
created June 2012 and was
accepted in principle by
CMT. Directorates were
required to provide their
priorities for the year,
however due to difficult
circumstances did not
submit this.

identifying Directorate
priorities for the year.

table below.
Issue Action Responsible Target for
Officer completion
Whilst staff are aware of the | Create a Policy and HR Support December
need to declare conflict of Procedure for SHG Executive and 2013
interest, but only on Conflict of Interest that Head of Internal
discretionary basis staff defines the different type | Audit
completes an annual of conflict (including
statement. There is no perceived conflict) and
Policy and procedure in implement.
place to guide SHG on Note work has started in
conflict of interest. this area with the HRIS
System containing the
statement.
With a shortage of qualified | To implement the HR Workforce On-going
staff (including time taken to | strategy through Planning

To an extent staff are aware
of the potential risks that
may impact an activity if the
appropriate controls are not
implemented. There are
different approaches to
covering this governance
element — procedures,
allocating risk manager etc

Confirm SMT
understanding of this
element and agree
appropriate actions as a
result. Actions could
include briefing of
Directorates’ senior
management teams.

Directorates with
support from
CPPU and
Internal Audit.
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Issue Action Responsible Target for
Officer completion
Risk Registers are not Complete CPPU N/A
evaluated or formally The new Corporate
monitored on a regular Performance Report
basis. System for 2013/14,
evaluates Corporate
Risks on a monthly basis,
whilst Directorates are
required to monitor and
report on Directorate Risk
Registers on a quarterly
basis.
Whilst Directorates use their | Issue to be presented to Directorates with | 31 March
risk registers and hold SMT for discussion. support from 2014
weekly meetings to discuss | Possible action that could | CPPU and
progress in activities, most | take place is creating Internal Audit
Directorates agree that early warning indicators
further refinement to in procedures and create
process can be made that an escalation process.
identifies any routine activity
that could impact SHG
achieving its strategic and
directorate level objectives.
There are no Directorates to create Directorates. 31 March
continuity/contingency plans | continuity/contingency 2014
in place in case there are plans.
service disruptions through | This action has a
natural disasters, ICT potential cost factor
failures or reallocation of included. This will need
staff. to be calculated and SMT
to make decision on the
level of risk it will take
regarding
implementation.
Not all Teams/Committees | Terms of References are | Chairs of SMT, 31 March
had clear roles and reviewed and revised to CMT, Council 2014
responsibilities for the year. | reflect the roles and Committees
responsibilities of its
members.
Council Committees do not | Council Committees to Council On-going
summarise the work provide annual Committees

undertaken during the year
that confirms how well its
strategic management and
policy considerations
shaped SHG's goals and
objectives.

summaries against the
work undertaken during
the year that impacts
SHG's goals and
objectives.
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Issue Action Responsible Target for
Officer completion
9 | Not all Team/Committee It is recommended that Chairs of SMT, 31 March
members are provided with | induction into the role and | CMT, Council 2014
an adequate induction and | responsibilities required Committees
training to improve their of the Team/Committee is
competency as members. taken place (especially if
terms of reference are
revised).

On an regular basis, a
skill self-assessment
should be undertaken by
members to identify any
training needs to improve
their competency.

10 | Forecasting of budgets is Budgetary and financial Directors Immediate
not as accurate as hoped to | regulations and (Accounting
anticipate the year-end procedures to be Officers)
financial position. complied with.

Accounting Officers need to
ensure their Directorates
comply with the Budgetary
and Financial Regulations
and procedures.

Over the coming year, SHG will take steps to address the above issues to further enhance its
governance arrangements and will monitor their implementation as part of the next annual review.

6. Certification
The Governance Framework as described above was in place in the Government of St Helena for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Whiist this statement was originally signed in July 2013, it has been

updated and reissued to coincide with the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

Signed

G\U.A.Du« (\;;O\J\,Q/\g &c‘ho\.l $

Gillian Francis Date
(Acting) Chief Secretary/ Head of the Public Service
St Helena Government
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,ﬁ& Statement of Financial
€ _%,l Performance for the year ended
A 31 March 2013

201112
(restated) 2012/13
£000 Note £000 £000
REVENUE 3
5,441 Taxation 6,188
862 Fines, Fees & Licenses 1,123
121 Earnings Government Departments 101
3,910 Income Received 4,199
476 Treasury Receipts 619
258 Trading Activities 89
12,100 DfID Grantin Aid 13,060
5,213 DfID Shipping Subsidy 5,000
4,737 DfID Development Aid 6,461
47 Other Development Aid 3,719
40,478 DfID Airport Infrastructure Funding 67,781
73,643 Total Revenue 108,340
EXPENDITURE 4
6,006 Health & Social Welfare 5,229
1,739 Benefit Payments 1,839
2,828 Education & Employment 2,848
1,462 Agriculture & Natural Resources 1,027
6,185 Infrastructure & Utilities 8,241
0 Environmental Management 227
1,433 Economic Development 1,715
1,013 Public Sector Pensions 2,115
1,117 Police 1,232
6,703 General Public Service 5,811
4,583 Shipping Subsidy 4,428
85 Trading Activities 77
1,353 Bulk Fuel Installation 1,222
34,507 Total Expenditure 36,011

39,136 Surplus for the Financial Year 72,329
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Statement of Financial Position as

% py ¢
:&; at 31 March 2013

[

A
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Current Assets
5,479 Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 5,970
8,312 Current Investments 9 6,400
1,585 Receivables 10 1,468
1,954 Inventories 11 2,068
31,770 Prepayments 12 49,415
813 Other Current Assets 208
49,913 65,529
Non Current Assets
422 Receivables 10 284
20,816 Property, Plant and Equipment 13 78,968
21,238 79,252
71,151 Total Assets 144,781
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
2,270 Payables 14 3,128
228 Provisions 15 0
685 Staff Benefits 16 639
3,183 3,767
Non Current Liabilities
35,307 Pension Liabilities 18 38,339
27 Other Liabilities 0
35,334 38,339
38,517 Total Liabilities 42,106
32,634 NET ASSETS 102,675
RESERVES
21,144 Consolidated Fund 21 92,969
11,490 Special Funds 21 9,706
32,634 102,675
D0 o LIRS
Colin Owen Date '

Financial Secretary
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Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

Statement of Changes in Net
Assets/Reserves for the year
ended 31 March 2013

Consolidated Special Total
Fund Funds Reserves
£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 as previously reported (21,530) 12,776 (8,754)
Prior Period Error - DfID grant recognition (823) (823)
Recognition of Bulk Fuel Installation 3,806 3,806
Derecognition of carrying value of RMS St Helena (749) (749)
Balance at 1 April 2011 as restated (22,279) 15,759 (6,520)
Changes in Net Assets/Reserves:

Capital Grant Received 19 19
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 41,301 (2,571) 38,730
Transfers (1,074) 1,074 0
Prior Period Error - Recognition of Payables (B5) (51) (116)
Prior Period Error - Property, Plant & Equipment 3,242 (3,243) (N
Prior Period Error - DfID grant recognition 522 522
Balance at 31 March 2012 as restated 21,144 11,490 32,634
Changes in Net Assets/Reserves:

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 65,559 534 66,093
Funds Received 9,981 9,981
Funds Applied (3,745) (3,745)
Actuarial Losses (2,288) (2,288)
Transfers 8,554 (8,554) 0
Balance at 31 March 2013 92,969 9,706 102,675
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4’%1- Statement of Cash Flows for the
5‘_ ." year ended 31 March 2013

2012
(restated) 2013
£000 Note £000 £000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
39,136 Surplus for the year 72,329
(45) Dividend received (25)
(323) Interest received (322)
Non Cash Movements
(40,478) Recognition of DfID Airport Infrastructure Funding 4 (67,781)
1,009 Depreciation 4 1,303
116 Impairment of Fixed Assets 4 0
55 (Gains)/losses on disposal and write off of fixed assets 4 (108)
0 Non-cash expense relating to Defined Benefit Pension 18 791
Liability
0 (Decrease) in Defined Contribution Pension Liability 18 (47)
0 Derecognition of Trust Funds in year (27)
(1,217) Movements in working capital 22 1,137
(1,747) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 7,250
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
45 Dividend Received 25
(3,486) Capital Expenditure (9,126)
39 Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and 108
Equipment
(6,312) (Increase)/Decrease in investments 1,912
323 Interest received 322
(9,391) Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (6,759)
(11,138) NET CASH FLOW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 491
16,617 Cash & Cash Equivalents at 1 April 5,479
(11,138) Net Cash Flows 491
5,479 Cash & Cash Equivalents at 31 March 5,970
Note: Interest received and interest paid included in surplus for the year.
2012 2013
£000 £000

152 Interest Paid 88
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z/' ? «  Statement of Comparison of
> Budget and Actual Amounts for
gﬁ the year ended 31 March 2013

The original budget, final budget, expenditure and revenue of SHG's services, reported in the
Management Accounts, is as follows:

Expenditure Revenue
HEAD OF EXPENDITURE Original Final Actual Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Budget Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Governor 158 181 190 1 1 1
Secretariat 1,153 1,180 1,157 217 230 306
Human Resources 3,306 3,309 3,215 0 0 0
Attorney General's Chambers 69 85 82 17 17 0
Police 731 770 782 196 196 211
Saint Helena Audit Service 80 80 76 91 91 118
Finance 2,504 2429 2551 20,025 20,025 20,030
Economic Development 688 688 687 12 12 8
Shipping Subsidy 5014 5014 4,458 5,000 5,000 5,000
Education & Employment 2575 2598 2,583 379 379 382
Health & Social Welfare 5567 5716 5457 1,849 1,849 1,826
Internal Audit 54 54 54 0 0 0
Agriculture & Natural 1,165 1,174 1,129 278 278 321
Resources
Infrastructure & Utilities 5800 5546 5,353 4,048 4,048 3,522
Environmental Management 136 137 140 0 0 0

29,000 28,961 27,914 32,113 32,126 31,725
Pensions and Benefits * 2879 2879 2943 0 0 0

31,879 31,840 30,857 32,113 32,126 31,725

* Pensions and Benefits is shown separately as the budget for this Head of Expenditure is not
appropriated in the same way as for other Heads of Expenditure. The Pensions and Benefits
ordinances state that expenditure can be charged directly to the Consolidated Fund, rather than
budget being appropriated.

Appropriation Ordinance 2012, enacted by the Governor of St. Helena with the advice and consent
of the Legislative Council of St. Helena provided for the services of the financial year 1 April 2012 to
31 March 2013. The Appropriation Ordinance makes up SHG's original budget. Supplementary
Appropriations, Withdrawal Warrants and Special Warrants have been issued in the year and these
amendments, added to the original budget, make up SHG's final budget.

Performance against budget is reported monthly in SHG's Management Accounts. The

Management Accounts are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the
preparation of the Financial Statements and therefore cannot be compared directly.
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Note 5 provides an explanation of the reasons for changes between the original and final budget and
an explanation of the material differences between the final budget and the actual expenditure and
revenues reported in the Management Accounts. Also, as the budget and accounting basis differ,
Note 5 also includes a reconciliation between the actual amounts on a modified cash basis (reported
in the Management Accounts) and the amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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Note 1
Accounting Policies

a) Accounting Basis
These Financial Statements of the Government of St. Helena (SHG) are prepared in accordance
with the requirements of section 109(1)(a) of the Constitution for Saint Helena and section 10(1) of
the Public Finance Ordinance.

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by the International Federation of Accountants with the
exception of IPSAS 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard requires the
Financial Statements of St Helena Government to be consolidated with the Financial Statements of
other entities for which the Government has control. We acknowledge that on this basis, the
Financial Statements do not fully comply with the requirements of IPSAS however, consolidation is
not currently considered to be cost effective in view of the practical issues involved which include
the contrast in the sectors in which the subsidiaries are operating and the financial reporting
standards adopted. The subsidiaries of SHG are listed in Note 24.

This set of Financial Statements reports the second year of the adoption of the accruals basis of
accounting. In the preparation of these Financial Statements SHG has used transitional provisions
available within IPSAS for organisations that have recently adopted this financial reporting standard.
The standards containing transitional provisions are IPSAS 13 Leases, IPSAS 17 Property, Plant
and Equipment and IPSAS 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transaclions (Taxes and Transfers).
The specific effect that the transitional provisions will have on the disclosures and presentation of
the accounts is detailed within the individual accounting policies.

The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of
those specific assets and liabilities described below and have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period.

b) Inventories
Inventories are assets in the form of materials or supplies that will be consumed in producing goods
or providing services or will be sold or distributed as part of SHG's ordinary business. Inventories
are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except for:

s Pharmacy inventory, which is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost as
it is distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge; and
e Stamps, which are measured at printing cost in accordance with IPSAS 12.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible items that (a) are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes: and (b) are expected to be
used during more than one reporting period.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and Equipment, SHG is
not required to recognise the initial value of Property, Plant, and Equipment for reporting periods up
to five years following the date of first adoption of accrual accounting (1 April 2011). SHG has opted
not to recognise the following classes of assets in the Financial Statements:

e Land;

¢ Buildings;

e Infrastructure (Roads); and

* RMS St Helena.
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The decision has been made by SHG due to the inability to establish reliable fair values. Buildings
were valued by an independent qualified Property Surveyor with a view to establishing fair values at
1 April 2011, however there was difficulty in establishing a reliable valuation split of the land and
building element of the properties and there was also a lack of market-based evidence.

Recoghnition

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure on the acquisition of an asset, or expenditure which
adds to, and not merely maintains, the value of an existing asset is capitalised, provided that it yields
benefits to SHG and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.

Capital expenditure can include:
e The acquisition, reclamation, enhancement or laying out of land;
e Acquisition, construction, preparation, enhancement or replacement of roads, buildings and
other structures; and
e Acquisition, installation or replacement of movable or immovable plant, machinery,
apparatus, vehicles, equipment and vessels.

In this context, enhancement means works which are intended to:
e Lengthen substantially the useful life of the asset, or
¢ Increase substantially the market value of the asset, or
¢ Increase substantially the extent to which the asset can or will be used for the purposes of or
in conjunction with the functions of SHG.

Under this definition, improvement works and structural repairs will be capitalised, whereas
expenditure to ensure that the asset maintains its previously assessed standard of performance will
not.

A de minimis level of £5,000 (2011/12 £1,000) has been adopted by SHG in relation to recognising
capital expenditure. Capital expenditure below this value is charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Measurement

Save for the application of transitional provisions of IPSAS 17 in relation to asset classes not
currently recognised, assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price plus any
costs associated with bringing the asset into use. The measurement of an asset acquired other than
through purchase is deemed to be its fair value at the recognition date.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all non-current assets with a finite useful life according to the following
policy:

e The residual value and useful life of an asset is estimated and reviewed annually.

e Land is not subject to depreciation.

e Infrastructure (Electricity and Bulk Fuel Installation) is depreciated over a 25 year period and
Infrastructure (Water) is depreciated over 10-50 years.
Motor Vehicles are depreciated over 5-10 years.
Plant, Machinery and Equipment are depreciated over a 10 year period.
Furniture and Fittings are depreciated over 10-50 years.
IT Networks and Equipment are depreciated over 5-10 years.
RMS St Helena subsequent capital expenditure recognised at cost is subject to depreciation
over the ship’s remaining life (accelerated depreciation over 4 years, taking into account that
the ship will be decommissioned by the end of the 2016/17 financial year).
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» Each component of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life of the asset.
Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year.

Some assets are held by SHG beyond their useful economic life and have been fully depreciated. It
is not SHG's policy to revalue these assets.

Disposals

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised: (a) on disposal;
or (b) when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the item. The gain or loss is included in the Statement of Financial Performance when the item is
derecognised.

Impairments

An impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and
above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service
potential through depreciation.

Assets are reviewed annually for any impairment loss and where an impairment loss occurs this is
recognised immediately in surplus/deficit in the year.

Revaluations

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in the fair values of the items of Property,
Plant and Equipment being revalued but should not usually exceed 3-5 years.

Revaluation increases are credited directly to revaluation surplus. However, any increase is
recognised in surplus/deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same class
of assets previously recognised in surplus/deficit. Revaluation decreases are recognised in
surplus/deficit. However, the decrease is debited directly to revaluation surplus to the extent of any
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that class of assets.

No revaluation exercise took place during 2012/13.

d) Assets Under the Course of Construction
Assets Under Construction are valued at the cost of completed works as at the financial reporting
date and are disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position. These assets, once completed, will
be transferred to completed assets within the class of assets stated above and depreciated over
their useful economic life.

The construction of the airport and associated infrastructure has been recorded as Assets under
Construction. The value of this asset at the year-end is based on the value of works completed up
to end of the financial year.

e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
Cash Equivalents of SHG comprise the funds held with Bank of Saint Helena, Crown Agents Bank,

Crown Agents Investment Management Ltd and Barclays Bank.
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f) Current Investments
The investments held at Crown Agents Investment Management Ltd, including amounts invested in
building society fioating-rate notes (FRNs) of between 3-5 years maturity are classed as current
investments.

g) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument, as defined by IPSAS 15, is “any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another”.

Although this covers a wide range of items, for SHG, the financial assets and liabilities comprise
trade receivables, trade payables, housing and house purchase loans and cash and cash
equivalents held in respect of all public funds of St Helena. In each case, one party’s contractual
right to receive (or obligation to pay) cash is matched by the other party’s corresponding obligation
to pay (or right to receive).

Recognition and basis of measurement

Trade receivables are carried at the original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of all outstanding amounts at the reporting date. Debts that
are considered doubtful have been provided for in full through the Statement of Financial
Performance. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Trade payables are carried at the original invoice amount.

Housing and house purchase loans are carried at their principal amounts plus interest less an
estimate made for doubtful receivables based on an assessment of all outstanding loans at the
reporting date.

The fair value of deposits and investments held with Bank of Saint Helena, Crown Agents Bank and
Barclays Bank is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. Funds managed by Crown
Agents Investment Management Ltd are disclosed at market value and the movement in market
value and interest earned on these funds is accounted for in the Consolidated Fund.

h) Staff Benefits
Staff Benefits comprise deferred leave accumulated by employees over a number of years. Staff
are allowed to accumulate up to a maximum 90 days.

A provision is made for the leave liability. The value of the provision is based on the number of days
of deferred leave of each employee, across the public service, multiplied by the rate of pay for a
working day.

Provision is released when an employee takes a portion or all of their deferred leave. This occurs
either when the employee takes leave during the year above their annual entittement, when an
employee leaves the public service or where they are paid their deferred leave.

i) Pension and Retirement Benefits
SHG manages and operates two pension schemes for employees, the Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme and the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (DBPS)

The DBPS is an unfunded scheme. Pensions and retirement benefits of eligible employees who
started on or before the 31 March 2010 are non-contributory and are paid to employees in
accordance with the Pensions Ordinance, CAP 150.

The cost of retirement benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when they
are earned by the employees rather than when they are eventually paid as pensions.
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The liabilities of the scheme are included in the Statement of Financial Position on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in
relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates, and projections of future earnings for current employees.

The discount rate used in calculating the Pension Liability is the rate on the FTSE Actuaries UK Gilts
Index (20 year duration). The discount rate is the annualised yield on this index as at 28 March 2013
(2.8% pa).

The change in the Pension Liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Cost (recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance) comprising:
Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities resulting from employee service in the current period.

Past Service Cost — the change in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment whose effect relates
to years of service earned in earlier years.

Interest Cost - the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation that
arises because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Re-measurement comprising:

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the defined benefit obligation that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation — recognised directly in net
assets/reserves.

The estimation of the Pension Liability depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages and
mortality rates. The Government Actuary’s Department was engaged to provide SHG with expert
advice about the assumptions to be applied and to calculate the Pension Liability at the year end.

Defined Contribution Pension Scheme (DCPS)

Employees commencing employment on or after 1 April 2010, who are eligible for adoption into the
scheme, have been adopted into the defined contribution scheme in accordance with the Trust Deed
2010 under which the scheme has been created. Pension contributions are paid into the scheme
by the Government and charged to the Consolidated Fund. Interest earned from the invested funds
are credited directly to the individual fund of each employee on the scheme and is not credited to
the revenues of SHG. The Trust Fund was established by SHG and is therefore recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position. The trust funds held with Bank of Saint Helena is recognised as an
asset within Cash & Cash Equivalents and the amounts earned by employees as a Pensions
Liability.

i) Funds and Reserves

There is a statutory authority for SHG to maintain only two forms of funds and reserves; the
Consolidated Fund and Special Funds. The Consolidated Fund is divided into five reserves (see
Note 21 for further information). All revenue and expenditure generated and incurred by SHG through
normal “day to day” Government business is channelled through the General Reserve within the
Consolidated Fund. Whenever SHG receives money provided by any Government or International
Body outside St Helena, on terms or conditions that such money may only be used for purposes
specified by the donor, the Governor may, by Order, establish a Special Fund for the purpose of
receiving, managing, disbursing and accounting for such money.

SHG's funds and reserves can be distinguished into usable reserves (which can be spent) and
unusable reserves (which are necessary under proper accounting practice, but which cannot be
spent). SHG’s usable reserves consist of the General Reserve and all Special Funds.
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k) Revenue and Expenditure Recognition
Revenue and expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis meaning that the revenue is
recognised when goods and services are supplied or rendered by SHG. Expenditure is recognised
when it is incurred, upon delivery of goods or when services are employed.

Revenue generated during the financial year but not received by the year end has been recognised
as accrued income. Monies received in this financial year which relates to next financial year have
been recognised as income received in advance.

The transitional provisions of IPSAS 23 Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions has been
adopted in relation to tax revenues and grant funding from EDF. Taxes have been accounted for on
a cash basis whereby revenue is recognised when cash is received. EDF grant received has also
been accounted for on a cash basis. The transitional period is up to three years for transfer funding
and five years for tax revenues from the initial adoption of IPSAS. Tax revenues are then required
to be recognised in the period in which they are generated.

The value of the milestone payments for the Airport Contract funded by the UK Government is
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance to correspond with the value of
the asset under construction. The revenue is then credited to the Airport Infrastructure Reserve and
on completion of the asset, will be written off over its useful economic life.

Goods and services paid for during the financial year but not yet received at the year-end have been
accounted as prepayments. Goods and services received during the year that have not been paid
by the financial year end have been accounted for as accrued expenses.

I) Internal Sales Transactions

During the normal course of business, Government directorates provide services to each other for
example: electricity, water and transport services. Internal sales during the year are eliminated in
the Financial Statements. The directorate providing such services recognises those sales within
their cost centre at the predetermined transfer price, which is subsequently netted out with the
originating expenditure within their cost centre. The receiving directorate then recognises the
expenditure for the service received. The cost of service provision is then accounted for as a transfer
between reserves in the statement of financial position.

m) Translation of Foreign Currencies
These Financial Statements are reported in St. Helena Pounds (SHP) which is at par with the Pound
Sterling. Revenue and Expenditure earned or incurred are translated into SHP at the rate of
exchange prevailing on the date the transaction occurred.

Gains or losses on the rate of exchange occurring as a result of difference between the date
transactions occurred and the date of the actual cash receipt or payment is recognised and the net
effect of all gains and losses is taken to the Statement of Financial Performance at the year end.

Financial Assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are translated into
SHP at the rate of exchange prevailing at the year-end date.

n) Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 3, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, requires disclosure in respect of new IPSASs, amendments and
interpretations that are, or will be, applicable after the accounting period. There are a number of
IPSASs and amendments issued by the ISPAS Board that are effective after this accounting period.

The following standards and amendments have not been adopted early in these accounts. St Helena
Government currently has no plan to early adopt any of these standards.
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Period
Standard, amendment or interpretation effective
Annual Improvements 2011 2013/14
Annual Improvements 2014 2015/16
IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of Accruals Basis IPSASs 2017/18
IPSAS 34, Separate Financial Statements 2017/18
IPSAS 35, Consolidated Financial Statements 2017/18
IPSAS 36, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 2017/18
IPSAS 37, Joint Arrangements 2017/18
IPSAS 38, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 2017/18

As noted within the accounting basis, these accounts do not currently comply fully with IPSAS 6 in
respect of consolidation of entities under St Helena Government control. As a result of this, it is
anticipated that the application of new group accounting standards IPSAS 34, 35, and 38 may have
a material impact on these accounts, but the effect cannot currently be estimated. None of the
remaining new or amended standards are currently anticipated to have future material impact on the
financial statements of the St Helena Government.

Note 2
Restatement of Prior Period Figures

The comparative figures for the prior period within the financial statements have been revised to
correct prior period errors and to reflect changes in accounting policy. The following tables show the
movement between the totals in the core financial statements as previously reported within the
2011/12 financial statements and the restated prior period totals for 2011/12 included in these
financial statements.
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Note 2 (continued)
Restatement of Prior Period Figures

Statement of Financial Performance

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

DfID Splitting
2011/12  Recog- Airport out
(as nition of Infra- Trading Prior 2011112
previously Bulk Fuel structure Activites  Period (as
reported) Installation Funding  Surplus Errors  restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
REVENUE
Taxation 5,463 (22) 5,441
Fines, Fees & Licenses 862 862
Earnings Government 121 121
Departments
Income Received 2,352 1,558 3,910
Treasury Receipts 448 28 476
Trading Activities 173 85 258
DfID Grant in Aid 12,100 12,100
DfID Shipping Subsidy 5213 5,213
DfID Development Aid 4217 520 4737
Other Development Aid 47 47
DfID Airport Infrastructure 0 40,478 40,478
Funding
Total Revenue 30,996 1,564 40,478 85 520 73,643
EXPENDITURE
Health & Social Welfare 6,006 6,006
Benefit Payments 1,739 1,739
Education & Employment 2,828 2,828
Agriculture & Natural 1,443 19 1,462
Resources
Infrastructure & Utilities 5,950 199 36 6,185
Economic Development 1,433 1,433
Public Sector Pensions 1,013 1,013
Police 1,117 1,117
General Public Service 6,672 31 6,703
Shipping Subsidy 4,553 30 4,583
Trading Activities 0 85 85
Bulk Fuel Installation 0 1,353 1,353
Total Expenditure 32,754 1,652 0 85 116 34,507
Surplus/(Deficit) for the {1,758) 12 40,478 0 404 39,136

Financial Year
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Note 2 (continued)

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

Restatement of Prior Period Figures

Statement of Financial Position

Change in
Account-
ing Policy De-recog-

31 March Airport nition of
2012 Reclass- Recog- Infra- carrying 31 March
(as ification of nition of structure  value of Prior 2012
previously Reserves Bulk Fuel and Invest- RMS St Period (as
reported) and Funds Installation ments Helena Errors  restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash 11,302 2,489 (8,312) 5,479
Equivalents
Current Investments 0 8,312 8,312
Receivables 1,415 170 1,585
Inventories 1,180 764 1,954
Prepayments 1,019 3 30,748 31,770
Other Current Assets 181 632 813
15,107 0 3,426 30,748 0 632 49,913
Non Current Assets
Receivables 422 422
Property, Plant & 51,715 598 (30,748) (749) 20,816
Equipment
52,137 0 598 (30,748) (749) 0 21,238
Total Assets 67,244 0 4,024 0 (749) 632 71,151
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 1,012 207 1,051 2,270
Provisions 228 228
Staff Benefits 685 685
1,925 0 207 0 0 1,051 3,183
Non Current Liabilities
Pension Liabilities 35,307 35,307
Other Liabilities 27 27
35,334 0 0 0 0 0 35,334
Total Liabilities 37,259 0 207 0 0 1,051 38,517
NET ASSETS 29,985 0 3,817 0 (749) {419) 32,634
RESERVES
Consolidated Fund 3,623 15,193 (749) 3,177 21,144
Special Funds 8,817 2,452 3,817 (3,596) 11,490
Capital Reserves 15,193 (15,193) 0
Other Reserves 2,452 (2,452) 0
29,985 0 3,817 0 (749) (419) 32,634
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Note 2 (continued)
Restatement of Prior Period Figures

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Reserves

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

Consol- Special Capital Other Total
idated Fund  Funds Reserves Reserves | Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2011 as previously 2,849 10,042 (24,379) 2,734 (8,754)
reported
Reclassification of Reserves and (24,379) 2,734 24,379 (2,734) 0]
Funds
Prior Period Error - DD grant (823) (823)
recognition
Recognition of Bulk Fuel Installation 3,806 3,806
Derecognition of carrying value of RMS (749) (749)
St Helena
Balance at 1 April 2011 as restated (22,279) 15,759 0 0 (6,520)
Changes in Net Assets/Reserves as
previously reported
Capital Grant Received 40,497 40,497
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period (533) (1,225) (1,758)
Transfers 1,207 (925) (282) 0
Total Changes in Net Assets/Reserves 674 (1,225) 39,572 (282) 38,739
as previously reported
Prior Period Adjustments
Capital Grant Received 19 (40,497) (40,478)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 41,834 (1,346) 40,488
Transfers (2,281) 1,074 925 282 0
Prior Period Errors 3,177 (2,772) 405
Total Prior Period Adjustments 42,749 (3,044) (39,572) 282 415
Changes in Net Assets/Reserves as
restated
Capital Grant Received 19 19
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 41,301 (2,571) 38,730
Transfers (1,074) 1,074 0
Prior Period Errors 3,177 (2,772) 405
Total Changes in Net Assets/Reserves 43,423 (4,269) 0 0 39,154
as restated
Balance at 31 March 2012 as 3,523 8,817 15,193 2,452 29,985
previously reported
Balance at 31 March 2012 as restated 21,144 11,490 0 0 32,634
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Note 2 (continued)
Restatement of Prior Period Figures

Statement of Cash Flows

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

Change in
Account- Reclass-
2011/12 ing Policy Recog- ification of
(as Airport nition of Prior current  2011/12
previously  Infra- Bulk Fuel  Period invest- (as
reported) structure Installation Errors ments  restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the year (1,758) 40,478 12 404 39,136
Dividend Received (45) (45)
Interest received (323) (323)
Non Cash Movements
Recognition of DfID Airport Infrastructure 0 (40478) (40,478)
Funding
Depreciation 923 86 1,009
Impairment of Fixed Assets 116 116
Fixed Asset Write off 55 55
Increase in Provision for Doubtful Debts 111 111
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (685) (38) (723)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current (845) (7 (632) (1,484)
Assets
Increase in Payables 165 210 228 603
Increase/(Decrease) in Staff Leave 48 48
Liability
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions 228 228
Net Cash Flows from Operating (1,687) 0 263 0 (323) (1,747)
Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Dividend Received 45 45
Capital Expenditure (3,473) (13) (3,486)
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, 39 39
Plant and Equipment
(Increase)/Decrease in investments (6,312) (6,312)
Interest received 323 323
Net Cash Flows from Investing (3,389) 0 (13) 0 (5,989) (9,391)
Activities
NET CASH FLOW FOR THE (5,076) 0 250 0 (6,312) (11,138)
FINANCIAL YEAR
Cash & Cash Equivalents at 1 April 16,378 0 2,239 0 (2,000) 16,617
Net Cash Flows (5,076) 0 250 0 (6,312) (11,138)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at 31 March 11,302 0 2,489 0 (8,312) 5,479
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Note 2 (continued)
Restatement of Prior Period Figures

During 2012/13, St Helena Government revised its accounting policy for recognising DfID airport
infrastructure revenue, the carrying amount of the related airport infrastructure asset under
construction and the payment in advance to the contractor. The value of the milestone payments
for the airport contract funded by the UK Government of £40,478k was previously credited directly
to reserves (capital grant), with a corresponding non-current asset being recognised as an asset
under construction. IPSAS requires the transfer of an asset under a non-exchange transaction to
be recognised as revenue. Revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance for 2011/12 has
therefore been restated to include the non-exchange revenue. A new Airport Infrastructure Reserve
has been established to clearly identify the funding recognised in relation to the project. IPSAS also
requires transferred assets to be recognised at fair value at the date of transfer. The asset under
construction recognised as at 31 March 2012 has therefore been restated to equal the value of works
completed. The excess of milestone payments made to the contractor in advance of work completed
is now recognised as a prepayment.

The Bulk Fuel Installation which is owned by SHG and managed by Solomon & Company (St Helena)
Pic under a management agreement, was not reflected in the 2011/12 financial statements. Net
assets as at 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 have increased by £3,806k and £3,817k respectively
as a result of the restatement. The Statement of Financial Performance includes a net increase in
revenue of £1,564k and expenditure of £1,552k resulting in additional surplus of £12k. This activity
operates on a similar basis to a trading account. No funds are appropriated for operational expenses
and income accrues to the fund. Whilst a Special Fund has not been established for this activity, it
is disclosed as such in the financial statements on the basis of best fit within the structure of the
financial statements.

Prior Period Errors

In 2011/12, no transfers were made to the Capital Reserve to reflect expenditure on Property, Plant
and Equipment. Depreciation, impairment and loss on disposal of assets were charged to the
Consolidated Fund and depreciation was disclosed as a transfer from the Capital Reserve to the
Consolidated Fund. The accounting treatment resulted in inaccurate movements and balances on
the individual funds but has no impact on the Statement of Financial Performance or net assets and
total reserves disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

Prior to 2012/13, DfID grant income was recognised entirely within the period in which the cash
funding was received. A corrected treatment has been applied retrospectively from in 2012/13,
restating DfID grant income recognised in prior periods. As at 1 April 2011, there was a cumulative
reduction in income recognised of £123k and an additional £448k recognised during 2011/12.

Other Presentational Amendments

Reserves were presented under four headings in the 2011/12 financial statements; Consolidated
Fund, Capital Reserves, Other Reserves and Special Funds. However, there is statutory authority
for St Helena Government to maintain only two forms of reserve funds; the Consolidated Fund and
Special Funds. The presentation of reserves has therefore been revised to more appropriately reflect
St Helena Government's statutory reserves. The re-categorisation has no impact on the overall
reserves total.

Investments held with Crown Agents Investment Management have been reassessed as not meeting
the definition of a cash equivalent as they are held by St Helena Government for periods in excess
of 3 months. They are however readily convertible and therefore considered to be current
investments. For consistency this change in classification has been applied retrospectively. Cash
and cash equivalents and current investments have been restated by £2,000k at 1 April 2011 and
£8,312k at 31 March 2012. There is no impact on net assets.
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Note 3
Revenue by Category
2011112
(restated) 2012/13
£000 £000 £000
Taxation
1,449 Income Tax (PAYE) 1,560
270 Self Employed 205
264 Corporation Tax 390
0 Service Tax 304
99 Withholding Tax 104
855 Customs Duty - Alcohol 796
663 Customs Duty - Tobacco 715
356 Customs Duty - Petrol 320
111 Customs Duty - Diesel 197
1,374 Other Customs Duties 1,597
5,441 6,188
Fines, Fees & Licenses
19 Stamp Duty 30
54 Immigration Fees 39
24 Planning Fees 35
765 Other Fines, Fees & Licenses 1,019
862 1,123
121 Earnings Government Departments 101
121 101
Income Received
235 Water Charges 289
1,920 Electricity Charges 2,025
1,558 Bulk Fuel Sales 1,597
197 Other Income Received 288
3,910 4,199
Treasury Receipts
254 Interest Received 312
150 Currency Fund 150
0 Gain on Cash Deposits 117
72 Other Treasury Receipts 40
476 619
258 Trading Activities 89
258 89

11,068 Total Local Revenue 12,319
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Note 3 (continued)
Revenue by Category

2011/12
(restated) 2012/13
£000 £000 £000

12,100 DfID Grant in Aid 13,060

5,213 DfID Shipping Subsidy 5,000

4,737 DfID Development Aid 6,461

47 Other Development Aid 3,719

40,478 DfID Airport Infrastructure Funding 67,781
62,575 96,021

73,643 Total Revenue 108,340
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Note 4
Expenditure by Category
2011112 2012/13
(restated)
£000 £000
9,674 Employee Costs 11,631
903 Property Costs 630
109 Transport & Plant 710
7,724  Supplies & Services 7,625
1,417 Administration Costs 870
9,760 Payments to Other Agencies, Bodies or Persons 9,567
1,706  Other Expenditure 2,205
1,842 Payment to Contractors 1,331
60 Finance & Other 21
1,009 Depreciation 1,303
116 Impairment of Fixed Assets 0
55 Assets Written Off 0
21 Loss on Disposal of Assets 0
111 Provision for Doubtful Debts 118

34,507 Total Expenditure 36,011
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Note 5
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

The following table provides an analysis and explanation of the reasons for changes between the
original and final budget:

Supple-
mentary  With-
Head of Expenditure Original Appro- drawal Special Final

Budget priation Warrant Warrant Budget
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Governor 158 13 10 181
Secretariat 1,153 27 1,180
Human Resources 3,306 4 3,310
Attorney General's Chambers 69 16 85
Police 731 39 770
Saint Helena Audit Service 80 80
Finance 2,504 58 (133) 2,429
Economic Development 688 688
Shipping Subsidy 5,014 5,014
Education & Employment 2,575 23 2,598
Health & Social Welfare 5,567 149 5,716
Internal Audit 54 54
Agriculture & Natural Resources 1,165 8 1,173
Infrastructure & Utilities 5,800 (255) 5,545
Environmental Management 136 2 138

29,000 339 (388) 10 28,961
Pensions and Benefits 2,879 2,879

31,879 339 (388) 10 31,840

The Supplementary Appropriation approved by Legislative Council in March 2013 increased budgets
based on the latest available forecast expenditure.

The Withdrawal Warrants, used to finance the above Supplementary Appropriation, were in relation
to funding held centrally for market forces supplements and increments (£133k) and an under spend
on fuel used in the generation of electricity (£255k).

Where there is an urgent and unforeseen call on the Consolidated Fund and there is no budget for
it, a Special Warrant is requested as the most appropriate means of authorising the expenditure.
The Special Warrant was in relation to additional funding required for increased electricity usage at
Plantation House {£10k). A further Special Warrant of £265k was also issued in year in relation to a
settlement of a compensation claim, however this was not included in the final budget as the related
expenditure was provided for in 2011/12.

The following table provides an analysis and explanation of the material differences between the
final budget and actual:
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Note 5 (continued)
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Expenditure Revenue
Final Actual Variation| Final Actual Variation
Budget £000 £000 | Budget £000 £000

£000 £000
Governor 181 190 (9) 1 1 0
Secretariat 1,180 1,157 23 230 306 76
Human Resources 3,310 3,215 95 0 0 0
Attorney General's Chambers 85 82 3 17 0 (17)
Police 770 782 (12) 196 211 15
Saint Helena Audit Service 80 76 4 91 118 27
Finance 2,429 2,551 (122)] 20,025 20,030 5
Economic Development 688 687 1 12 8 (4)
Shipping Subsidy 5,014 4,458 556 5,000 5,000 0
Education & Employment 2,598 2,583 15 379 382 3
Health & Social Welfare 5,716 5,457 259 1,849 1,826 (23)
Internal Audit 54 54 0 0 0 0
Agriculture & Natural Resources 1,173 1,129 44 278 321 43
Infrastructure & Utilities 5,545 5,353 192 4,048 3,622 (526)
Environmental Management 138 140 (2) 0 0 0

28961 27,914 1,047 32126 31,725 (401)
Pensions and Benefits 2,879 2,943 (64) 0 0 0

31,840 30,857 983| 32,126 31,725 (401)

The reasons for the material differences between the final budget and actual figures are as follows:

Expenditure
Finance (£122k over spend) - as a result of increasing the capitalisation threshold from £1k to £5k

in 2012/13. Expenditure previously budgeted for under capital has now been accounted for under
recurrent expenditure.

Human Resources (£95k under spend) - delays in recruitment to a number of technical co-operation
posts.

Shipping Subsidy (£556k under spend) - efficiency savings in the running costs and an increase in
revenues of the RMS St Helena led to a reduction in shipping subsidy payments made to St Helena
Line.

Health & Social Welfare (£259 under spend) - customs duty payable on medical supplies were
less than what was budgeted.

Infrastructure and Utilities (£192k under spend) - lower fuel consumption at the Power Station
contributed to the under spend.

Pensions (£64k over spend) - increase in the number of redundancies during the year across SHG
and one employee taking early retirement that was not budgeted for.

Income

Infrastructure and Utilities (£526k under recovery) - under collection in electricity, water and
drainage charges mainly as a result of an over optimistic population consumption assumed during
the budget setting process.

The following reconciliations shows how the expenditure and revenue of SHG's services reported in

the Management Accounts is adjusted due to being prepared on a different basis from the accounting
policies used to prepare SHG's Financial Statements.
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Note 5 (continued)
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

£000
Expenditure as per Management Accounts 30,857
Amounts not included in Management Accounts but included in the 8,254
Financial Statements
Amounts included in Management Accounts but not included in the (3,100)
Financial Statements
Expenditure as per the Statement of Financial Performance 36,011
£000
Revenue as per Management Accounts 31,725
Amounts not included in Management Accounts but included in the 79,386
Financial Statements
Amounts included in Management Accounts but not included in the (2,771)

Financial Statements
Revenue as per the Statement of Financial Performance 108,340
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St Helena Government Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7
Employee Costs

The table below provides additional financial and non-financial information about employee costs
disclosed in these Financial Statements. It shows the level of contribution made by SHG to
employees on the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme (DCS) by directorate and the cost of
retirement benefits earned by employees under the Defined Benefits Scheme (DBS). The table also
shows the Full Time Equivalent (FTE) of employee numbers for each directorate/ service area.

The FTE is a unit of measure that is used to express employee numbers within a service area. Itis
based on the number of contracted hours of work and amalgamates full-time employment and part-
time employment into one comparable unit of measure. For SHG a FTE is defined as 1,827 hours
per annum.

A FTE of 1.0 means that either there is one employee contracted to work on a full-time basis (i.e.
1,827 hours per annum) or there are several employees contracted to work part-time but together
make one FTE.

Directorate/ Service Area Employee Pensions Pensions Employee
Costs (DCS) (DBS) Numbers
2012113 201112 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Governor's Office 86 102 8.0 9.0
Secretariat 332 285 7 5 33.0 28.3
Human Resources 111 69 3 2 9.0 11.5
Attorney General's Chambers 7 7 4 1.0 1.0
Police 456 526 14 11 50.0 59.0
St Helena Audit Service 53 66 0 6.0 7.3
Finance 374 512 12 5 41.0 43.0
Corporate Procurement 68 91 4 3 7.0 13.4
Tourism 17 77 5.5
Shipping Subsidy 75 50 1 7.0
Education and Employment 1,081 1,121 20 10 126.0 1347
Health and Social Welfare 1,640 1,859 27 20 198.0 2545
Internal Audit 38 39 4.0 4.0
Agricuiture and Natural 481 654 10 7 60.0 87.0
Resources

Infrastructure and Utilities 1,001 1,002 13 6 129.0 140.9
Land, Planning and Environment 83 173 3 13.0 22.0
Trading Activities 33.0 38.0
Bulk Fuel Installation 140 109

Pension Scheme Payments 2,001 73 1,966 0

Other Employee Costs 3,497 2,859

Total 11,631 9,674 114 73 1,966 0 7180 866.1
Notes:

1) Employee costs for Trading Accounts have been netted out on preparation of the Financial
Statements and are therefore not included above,

2) The FTE numbers given above exclude Technical Co-operation (TC) Officers totalling 89.

3) Other Employee Costs includes redundancy payments paid to 16 employees totalling £35k and
the cost of long term TC officers.

4) The employees of the Bulk Fuel Installation are not included in the Employee Numbers above as
they are employed by Solomon & Company (St Helena) Plc.
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Note 8
Cash & Cash Equivalents
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
1,826 Bank Deposits 1,545
3,529 Crown Agents Bank 5,147
(729) Overdraft - Bank of Saint Helena (1,491)
853 Cash 769
5,479 5,970
Note 9
Current Investments
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
8,312 Certificates of Deposits 6,400
e ___ 6,400



St Helena Government
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 10
Receivables

Amounts falling due within one year
2012

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
Trade Receivables:
150 Utilities 135
40 Government Landlord Housing 33
170 BFI Fuel 145
1,053 Other 900
1,413 1,213
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions:
17 Income Tax Debtors 16
17 16
Loans:
121 Housing Loans 145
3 House Purchase 4
92 Staff Advances 201
50 Other Advances 86
266 436
1,696 1,665
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts:
(30) Trade Receivables: (67)
(81) Loans (130)
(111) (197)
1,585 1,468
Amounts falling due after one year
2012 2013
£000 £000 £000
Loans:
412 Housing Loans 309
10 House Purchase 7
422 316
0 Less: Provision for Doubtful Loans (32)
422 284



St Helena Government
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013

Note 11
Inventories
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
Consolidated Fund:
194  Pharmacy 209
0 Stamps 25
79  Other 80
273 314
Special Funds:
81  Information Technology 82
367 Unallocated Stores 405
469  Transport 503
917 990
988 Bulk Fuel Installation 1,090
2,178 2,394
Less Provision for Slow Moving and
Obsolete Inventories:
0 Special Funds (98)
(224) Bulk Fuel Installation (228)
224 (326)
1,954 2,068
Inventories recognised as an expense in 2012/13:
£000
Pharmacy 445
Stamps 17
Other 39
Information Technology 56
Unallocated Stores 85
Transport 169
811
Note 12
Prepayments
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
1,022 Other Prepayments 1,215
30,748 DfID Funded Airport Project 48,200

31,770
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St Helena Government Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 14
Payables
2012
(restated) 2013
£000 £000 £000
Creditors:
116 Trade Payables 1,217
192 Other 37
308 1,254
Deposits:
111 Currency Fund 49
65 Other 67
176 116
474 Accruals 566
Income Received in Advance:
348 Income Tax 452
964 Other 740
1,312 1,192
2,270 3,128
Note 15
Provisions
2012 2013
£000 £000 £000
0 Balance at 1 April 228
228 Provisions recognised 0
0 Provision released 228
228 Balance at 31 March 0
Note 16
Staff Benefits
2012 2013
£000 £000 £000
637 Balance at 1 April 685
48 Increase in provision 127
0 Provision released (173)

685 Balance at 31 March 639
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Note 17
Movement in Provisions
2012 2013
£000 £000
Balance at 1 April 1,248
Increase in Specific Provision for Doubtful Debts 118
Increase in Slow Moving and Obsolete Stocks 102
220
Decrease in Provision for Compensation (228)
Decrease in Provision for Staff Leave Liability (46)
(274)
1,248 1,194
Note 18
Pension Liabilities
2012 2013
£000 £000
Defined Benefits Pension Scheme:
Balance at 1 Apiril 35,200
Movement in the year due to:
Current Service Cost 883
Past Service cost 0
Interest Cost 1,083
Expense for year 1,966
Benefits Paid (1,175)
Actuarial Losses 2,288
35,200 Balance at 31 March 38,279
Defined Contribution Pension Scheme
35 Balance at 1 April 107
71  Contributions Received 114
1  Interest Received 2
0 Payments (163)
107  Balance at 31 March 60
35,307 38,339

The Government Actuary’s Department was contracted by SHG to perform an assessment of the
Pension Liability of the defined benefit section of the St Helena Government Pension Scheme for
these set of Financial Statements.

The actuarial Pension Liability as at 31 March 2013 has been estimated by rolling forward the results

of the previous year's assessment. A summary of financial assumptions used in the calculation is
below:
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Assumption 31 March 2012 31 March 2013
% a year % a year
Rate of return (discount rate) 3.1 28
Rate of pension increases 2.0 20
Rate of pay inflation 2.5 25
Rate of return in excess of:
Pension increases 1.1 0.8
General pay increases 0.6 0.3

The movement on the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme is shown on the Trust Funds Statement
that accompanies these Financial Statements. During 2012/13, some employees eligible to join the
DCPS opted to join the MiSaint pension scheme offered by Solomon & Company. Contributions for
those members of staff have been transferred to that scheme.

Note 19
Leases

None of the fixed assets disclosed in the Financial Statements are held on a lease basis.

Land and Buildings are leased. We have not made any disclosures on these leased assets on the
basis that we have adopted the transitional provisions of IPSAS 13 Leases and IPSAS 17 Property,
Plant and Equipment which does not require the disclosure of land and buildings.

Note 20
Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

SHGs activities expose it to certain financial risks, the main relevant risks are:
Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
SHG’s customers. This risk is minimised by ensuring that deposits are not made with financial
institutions unless they meet minimum investment criteria. SHG’s investment strategy includes a
policy that limits the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution.

SHG’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its deposits in banks and financial institutions
cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay
the deposit or principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. There was no evidence at
the reporting date that such entities would be unable to meet their commitments.

SHG generally allows 30 days credit for its trade receivables. At the reporting date a balance of
£1.213m was outstanding. At the reporting date a balance of £0.465m was outstanding in relation
to housing and house purchase loans. The terms and conditions of the loans vary in terms of interest
rate applied and the length of each individual loan.

Liquidity risk — the possibility that SHG might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments.

The constitution requires SHG to provide a balanced budget, which ensures sufficient monies are

raised to cover annual expenditure. Sufficient cash balances are also maintained throughout the
year. There is therefore no significant risk that SHG will be unable to meet its commitments.
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Interest rate risk — the risk that actual interest rates obtained on investments might be lower than
expectation.

Cash surpluses are deposited as a mix of fixed rate and floating rate investments. As at 31 March
2013, the value of investments held as floating rate deposits was £5,092k. Total interest earned by

SHG on cash surpluses during 2012/13 was £322k. As this is not a significant portion of total
revenue, SHG is not deemed to be exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Note 21
Reserves

The reserves of SHG are presented below. There is a statutory authority for SHG to maintain only
two forms of reserve funds:

e The Consolidated Fund
¢ The Special Funds
The Consolidated Fund

The Consolidated Fund comprises five reserves.

31 March 31 March
2012 2013
(restated) £000
£000
3,405 General Reserve 2,621
40,478 Airport Infrastructure Reserve 108,259
12,398 Capital Reserve 20,312
(35,200) Pension Reserve (38,279)
63 Donated Asset Reserve 56
21,144 92,969

An analysis of the movements on each of the reserves is shown below:
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St Helena Government Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 21 (continued)
Reserves

General Reserve

This is the primary government fund in which all revenues are received and all expenditures are
made save for those separately provided in law.

2011112 2012/13
(restated)
£000 £000
2,849 Balance at 1 April 3,405
823 Surplus/(Deficit) (217)
(149) Transfers (567)
(65) Prior Period Error - Recognition of Payables 0
(53) Prior Period Error - Property, Plant & Equipment 0
3,405 Balance at 31 March 2,621

Airport Infrastructure Reserve (previously named Capital Grant)

This reserve was established to represent the assets acquired principally through the DfID funded
airport project, which are shown within Assets Under Construction and Prepayments.

2011/12 2012/13
£000 £000
0 Balance at 1 April 40,478
40,478 Surplus/(Deficit) 67,781
40,478 Balance at 31 March 108,259

Capital Reserve

This reserve was created upon initial recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment within the
Statement of Financial Position. Funds will be transferred to the Capital Reserve to reflect
expenditure on assets and an amount equivalent to depreciation will be charged to the reserve over
the useful life of assets.

2011/12 2012/13
(restated)
£000 £000

(24,444) Balance as at 1 April 2011 as previously reported
(749) Derecognition of carrying value of RMS St Helena

(25,193) Balance as at 1 April 2011 as restated 12,398
0 Surplus/(Deficit) (1,214)

19 Capital Grant Received 0

(923) Transfers 9,128
35,200 Reclassification of Pension Liability to Pension Reserve 0
3,295 Prior Period Error - Property, Plant & Equipment 0

12,398 Balance at 31 March 20,312
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Note 21 (continued)
Reserves

Pension Reserve

This reserve represents the negative balance arising from the unfunded liability on the defined
benefits pension scheme.

201112 2012113
£000 £000
0 Balance at 1 April (35,200)
0 Surplus/(Deficit) (791)
0 Actuarial Losses (2,288)
(35,200) Reclassification of Pension Liability from Capital Reserve 0
(35,200) Balance at 31 March (38,279)

Donated Asset Reserve

This reserve was created to represent the assets donated to SHG. The fund balance is adjusted
each year to reflect the change in value of those assets.

201112 2012/13
(restated) £000
£000
65 Balance at 1 April 63
(2) Transfers €4)

63 Balance at 31 March 56
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St Helena Government Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 22
Statement of Cash Flows — Movements in Working Capital
2012 2013
£000 Note £000
111 Increase in Provision for Doubtful Debts 4 118
(723) (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 10 137
(1,484) (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 298
603 Increase in Payables 14 858
48 Increase/(Decrease) in Staff Leave Liability 16 (46)
228 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions 15 (228)
(1,217) 1,137
Note 23

Related Party Transactions

Related party means that parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control
the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions, or if the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control.

Related party relationships may arise when an individual is part of the key management personnel
of a reporting entity. Related party relationships may also arise through external operating
relationships between SHG and the related party. The definition of related party also includes
entities owned by key management personnel or close family members of such individuals of SHG
and where a reporting entity is economically dependent on another entity.

Disclosure of certain related party relationships and related party transactions and the relationship
underlying those transactions is necessary for accountability purposes, and enables users to better
understand the Financial Statements of the reporting entity because:
¢ Related party relationships can influence the way in which an entity operates with other
entities in achieving its individual objectives, and the way in which it co-operates with other
entities in achieving common or collective objectives;
¢ Related party relationships might expose an entity to risks, or provide opportunities that would
not have existed in the absence of the relationship; and
o Related parties may enter into transactions that unrelated parties would not enter into, or
may agree to transactions on different terms and conditions than those that would normally
be available to unrelated parties.

Central Government (UK)

Saint Helena is an Overseas British Territory and receives funding each year from the UK
Government, through the Department for International Development (DfID). Funding received in
2012/13 totalling £18.1m (excluding specific project funding and the funding recognised as a result
of the DfID funded airport project) equated to 60% of SHG's total resources.

Key Management Personnel
Remuneration
The key management personnel of SHG (as defined by IPSAS 20, Related Party Disclosures) are

the Elected Members of Legislative Council, who together constitute the governing body of SHG.
The Ex Officio Members (Attorney General, Chief Secretary and Financial Secretary) are also
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determined to be key management personnel of SHG as they also have responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of SHG.

The aggregate remuneration of Elected Members of Legislative Council and the number of
individuals determined on a full-time equivalent basis receiving remuneration from SHG are:

Aggregate remuneration £179,357 (2011/12 £167,743)
Number of persons 12 persons

The aggregate remuneration of Ex Officio Members and the number of individuals determined on a
full-time equivalent basis receiving remuneration from SHG are:

Aggregate remuneration £261,574 (2011/12 £236,395)
Number of persons 3 persons

Declarations of Interests

SHG requires key management personnel to complete Declaration of Interest Forms at the beginning
of each financial year or earlier if circumstances change. Circumstances, existing or prospective,
which may throw into question their professional independence or present a possible conflict of
interest are required to be declared.

In respect of the 2012/13 financial year, a number of key management personnel declared interests
in organisations (other than the controlled entities listed below) that SHG transact with. However,
these were not deemed to be significant interests that would lead to a related party transaction.

Controlled Entities
SHG has a controlling interest in the following reporting entities:

Bank of Saint Helena, St Helena Currency Fund, St Helena Fisheries Corporation, Enterprise St
Helena, St Helena National Trust, St Helena News Media Service, Solomon & Company (St Helena)
Plc and St Helena Line Ltd.

Note 24 sets out the nature of the controlling interest that SHG holds in each of the controlled entities.

A number of SHG's key management personnel have declared interests in the controlled entities
listed above, including shareholdings in Solomon & Company (St Helena) Plc and board membership
of Enterprise St Helena, St Helena Fisheries Corporation and St Helena National Trust.

Although SHG has transacted with the controlled entities in the financial year, in the main the
transactions occurred within a normai supplier or client/recipient relationship on terms and conditions
no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect SHG would have adopted if
dealing with the entities at arm'’s length in the same circumstances. Therefore further information
on these transactions has not been disclosed. The exceptions to this are that:

e St Helena Fisheries Corporation receives fuel for sale to fishermen at a subsidised cost from
the Bulk Fuel Installation.

¢ SHG hold current accounts with Bank of Saint Helena for which no interest is payable or
receivable. No Interest is payable or receivable on the Bank's Cash Deposits held with SHG.

e St Helena National Trust receives a support grant each year from SHG. In 2012/13 this
amounted to £18,197.

« SHG granted St Helena National Trust a fifty year lease on Broadway House, Main Street,
Jamestown, for a “peppercorn” rent.

62



St Helena Government Financial Year Ended 31 March 2013
Notes to the Financial Statements

¢ SHG provided St Helena News Media Services with a subsidy towards operating expenses
totalling £47,600.

e SHG provided Enterprise St Helena (ESH) with a subsidy in order to assist with the daily
operations of the entity (£630,205), an amount for various capital projects in order to improve
visitor attractions (£255,340) and funds to boost ESH’s Loan Equity Fund (£540,000). SHG
also funded the employment of specialist staff in ESH via the Technical Cooperation fund
(£438,613).

e« ESH holds a lease with SHG for the Jamestown Market, which expires on 1 June 2016. A
nominal rental fee is paid.

St Helena Currency Fund is set up under Currency Ordinance CAP 124, and is administered by the
Currency Commissioners and Currency Officers who are all employees of SHG. SHG provide a
number of services to the St Helena Currency Fund at no cost. These services include staff salaries
for the keeping of accounting records, the preparation of financial statements and the issuing and
ordering of notes and coins. In addition to these services, SHG Treasury also provide a cash holding
facility for the Currency Fund.
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Note 25
Events after the Reporting Date

The Financial Statements are authorised for issue on the date when they are signed by Financial
Secretary.

Material events before the date of issue of the Financial Statements which provided information
about conditions existing at 31 March 2013, have been accounted for in the Financial Statements.
Information about non-adjusting events after the reporting date is given below.

Divestment of Utility Services

On 1 April 2013, the Government of St Helena divested all utility services that were provided directly
by the Government to a new company, Connect St Helena Ltd. The company is wholly owned by
the Government.

Assets and liabilities relating to the utilities were transferred to the new company on that date. An
analysis of the net book value of the balances recorded in the Financial Statements at 31 March
2013 is listed below.

Several buildings including the Power Station, Water Treatment Plants and Office accommodation
have been transferred to Connect Saint Helena. Buildings are not currently recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position.

Inventories totalling £1,127k were transferred in addition to that recorded above. These inventories
are not recorded in the balance above as they were charged to expenditure on acquisition. Due to
the nature of internal recharges and shared costs such as fuel, it is not possible to estimate the
impact that this transfer of function will have on future revenue and expenditure.

£000 £000

Assets
Property Plant and Equipment:

Infrastructure 8,448

Plant, Machinery & Equipment 98

IT Networks and Equipment 0

Assets under Construction 3,178

11,724

Inventory 81
Receivables 135
Cash & Cash Equivalents 630
Total Assets 12,570
Net Assets as a % of the Government Net Assets 12
Note 26

Capital Commitments

Airport for St Helena

The November 2011 contract with Basil Read (PTY) Ltd for the construction of an Airport for St
Helena at Prosperous Bay Plain is ongoing. The contract was signed in the amount of £201.5 million
for construction, with the provision of an additional £10 million in shared risk contingency that the
contractor may claim against in the event of certain pre-specified risks materialising. Contract
milestone payments as at 31 March 2013 totalled £108.26m (31 March 2012 £40.48m).

65



99
‘uolISOd [BIOUBUIS JO JUSLWISIBIS 8U) Ul paso|osIp
S| Ayngel pejejal pue aouejeq yueq sy] "BUS|SH IS JO JUSLUUIBAOS) 8y} Aq paysi|geise puny sni} B SI SWSYdS UOISUSd UONNQLIUO) paulaq 8yl

"Spaap 1SN} 8y} Ul paje)s sesodind papusjul 8yj Joj pasn aq Ajuo Ued pue spaap }SNJ} Sy} Ul PBUINO S|IEIAP 3y} YJIM S2UEPIOIOE
ul pebeuew ale spunq ‘spung asayj Jo so9)snJ) oY) SE pajeubisap S| pund JSNi| Yoesa Jo spaap 1sni} ay) ybnoiy) BUS|SH 1S JO JUSWUISACD) ay |

"BUSISH JUIES JO Jjueg
UM pjay ale ssouejeq pung ‘pun4 pajepliosuo) 8y} Jo Led e wioj Jou op 310}919Y) BUSISH JUIES JO JUSWUISAOS) 8y} AQ PSUMO JOU a1 Spuny assy |
"(9)(1)01 @0oUBUIPIO SOUBUIS 2IIGNd S} Y}IM SOUEPIODIJE Ul SPEW S| SJUSWSIE)S [BISUBUI [ENUUE 8y} YIIM SpUn4 JSni] 8y} J0 uolesado ayj jo aInsojsiq

66906 (6Z¥'SEL)  €.¢'98 1S9°LE1 (9€8°2) Trs'el S¥6°99 lejol
6EY'S (22) oLy 950°¢ (£21'2) Ll oGL's pun4 jsni] phoiq Auey ezi3
258'65 (zo2'vel)  082'28 v22'L0L 0 8912/ 908'vE 8wayos uoisuad uongiiuod pauyeq
Yoy’ /2 (002) €82 1ee'le (659) 166 £86'02
18V'PL 0 4 (5484 0 Sb 86E'Y1 pund jsnij s,uowojog
€902 (82¢) 69¢ 44 N4 (80%) 9/2 ¥se'e pundisni] ssop paj g sl|sen
8ve'l (22) €2 ¥z} (¥2) ve JAzAl pund isnij |janog
¥6e'l 0 <4 0£€’L 0 14 Gog‘1 pun4 isni] 8zud Aeio uleg
£6€'9 (6€€) 68¢ €0¢'9 (602) 265 0zZ6's pund isni] [endsoH [eowyy pjouly
#0S 0 6 S6v (9) 6 z6v pun4 Y5 sewy |eHoway\ plouly
G6e'L (L) 62 18¢’L (1) $T4 19¢'L pun }senbag ispuexaly
3 3 3 3 3 3 3
€10Z JelN LS 210z ey LE L0z 1dy |
je Jeah ul Jeak Je 1eal ul Jeak 1e
se aouejeg | sjuswhed uisydiasay se asuejeg| sjuawAhed uis}diasay se asuejeg

£10Z Y2Je LS popud Jeak ay) J0j SJUSWSAO pund JSni] JO Juawajels

sjusiwialels [eioueul
€102 Yoley LE papug Jes [eioueuiH JUSLIUIBACL) BUBIBH ]S



